
Democratic Service
Swyddfa’r Cyngor

CAERNARFON
Gwynedd
LL55 1SH

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Meeting

PENSION BOARD

Date and Time

2.00 pm, THURSDAY, 13TH DECEMBER, 2018

Location

Ystafell Gwyrfai, Council Offices, 

Caernarfon, Gwynedd. LL55 1SH

Contact Point

Bethan Adams
01286 679020

bethanadams@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

(DISTRIBUTED 06/12/18)

Complete Agenda

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/


 PENSION BOARD

MEMBERSHIP

EMPLOYER REPRESENTATIVES

Anthony William Deakin Cartrefi Conwy

Councillor Aled Ll. Evans

Huw Trainor

Cyngor Gwynedd Council

North Wales Police

MEMBER REPRESENTATIVES

Hywel Eifion Jones (retired – formerly Anglesey Council)

Osian Richards

Sharon Warnes

Members Representative

(retired - formerly Gwynedd Council)



A G E N D A

1.  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence

2.  DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

To receive any declaration of personal interest

3.  URGENT MATTERS

To note any items which are urgent business in the opinion of the Chairman 
so that they may be considered

4.  MINUTES 4 - 8

The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the meeting of this 
committee  held on 16.07.2018 be signed as a true record. 

5.  PENSIONS COMMITTEE MINUTES 9 - 11

To submit, for information, minutes of the Pensions Committee meeting 
held on the 08 11 2018

6.  PENSION FUND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 2018/19 12 - 14

To consider the Investment Managers Report

7.  PENSION ADMINISTRATION 15 - 19

To consider the Senior Communication Officer’s Report

8.  THE PENSIONS REGULATOR SURVEY 20 - 35

To consider the Senior Communication Officer’s report

9.  SELF SERVICE FOR MEMBERS SYSTEM DEMONSTRATION 36

To consider the Senior Communication Officer’s report



PENSION BOARD 16.07.18

1

PENSION BOARD, 16.07.18

Present: Anthony Deakin (Cartrefi Conwy), H. Eifion Jones (Scheme Members' 
Representative), Osian Richards (Scheme Members' Representative), Huw Trainor 
(North Wales Police) and Sharon Warnes (Scheme Members' Representative) 

Others invited: Councillor John Pughe Roberts, (Chair of the Pensions Committee).  

Officers:- Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department) (items 1-8 and items 11-15), 
Caroline Roberts (Investment Manager) (items 1-8 and items 11-15), Nicholas Hopkins 
(Pensions Manager) (items 9-15), Meirion Jones (Senior Communication Officer - 
Pensions) and Lowri Haf Evans (Member Support Officer).

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR

RESOLVED to re-elect Tony Deakin as Chair for 2018/19

2. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR

RESOLVED to re-elect Osian Richards as Vice-chair for 2018/19

3. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillor Aled Evans (Gwynedd Council)

4. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

No declarations of personal interest were received from any members present. 

5. URGENT ITEMS

None to note

6. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Chair signed the minutes of the meeting of this committee, held on 12 April 
2018, as a true record.

It was confirmed that ‘matters arising’ from the minutes would not be discussed 
at the meeting following an explanation regarding committee procedures. If an 
update regarding any matter was required, it had to be ensured that it was 
included on the meeting agenda.

7. PENSIONS COMMITTEE MINUTES

The minutes of the Pensions Committee held on 19 June 2018 were accepted 
for information.

It was noted that the main items of the Pensions Committee were on the agenda 
of this Pension Board meeting.

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



PENSION BOARD 16.07.18

2

8. PENSION FUND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

It was noted that the Members, along with Members of the Pensions Committee 
had attended an informal session arranged by the Head of Finance Department 
to discuss the Pension Board's accounts. 

The Members gave thanks for the timely presentation on the pre-audit accounts, 
and it was noted that there would be some amendments before the final version 
would be submitted, post-audit to the Fund’s annual general meeting on 10 
October 2018.

9. REPORT (draft) ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD FOR THE PENSION FUND'S 
2017/18 ANNUAL REPORT

Submitted - a draft report to seek the observations of members about its content 
for the Pension Fund's annual report. It was highlighted that the format was 
simple and the Senior Communications Officer was thanked for his guidance.

The following observations were received by members:

 There was a wish for the report to be more dynamic
 The Board's contribution and additional value needed to be highlighted
 The Board's successes needed to be included along with the 

recommendations submitted to the Committee, e.g., that there was a need to 
introduce a penalty system for employers who sent data in late, and the 
Board's contribution to the risk assessment

 Challenging words needed to be used to reflect that the Board was not only 
receiving updates.

It was reported that the final report would be circulated to the Chair. 

10. GENERAL UPDATE ON ADMINISTRATING PENSIONS

A comprehensive report was submitted providing a general overview of pension 
administration over the last six months as well as information on the work that 
had been accomplished over the period, an update on various projects, changes 
in regulations and a list of challenges that the department faced from day to day.

During the ensuing discussion, the following main observations were noted: 

 End of year contributions - it was reported that every employer now had 
a responsibility to sign the data before submission

 Three employers so far had not complied with the closing date
 Penalty arrangements needed to be introduced if some users continued 

to create additional work. It was considered that this was an item for the 
Committee to consider.

 Excellent developments had been implemented in the context of self-
service registration

 Prudential and Scottish Widows were now refusing new clients in order 
to hold an additional voluntary contributions review, and therefore, the 
fund would continue to use Clerical Medical.

 Under the 'staffing' heading, the Board was eager to understand and, if 
appropriate, to support the case for resources to restructure.

 Having received information about the department's performance and 
the comparison in main tasks that were acted upon, it was highlighted 
that there was a need to continue to review the situation ensuring that 

Page 5



PENSION BOARD 16.07.18

3

performance was good. However, it was suggested that it would be 
beneficial to receive information about the other duties which were 
additional to the core tasks.

 A guide for employers was being prepared and it would be available for 
electronic distribution to all bodies

 The website was continuing to be updated
 It was intended to submit an update every six months

The officers were thanked for the detailed update. 

The information was accepted.

11. PENSION MEETING DATES

Submitted, for information, a report by the Head of Finance Department noting pension 
meeting dates for the year 2018 / 2019, so that members could note the dates in their 
diaries and plan ahead accordingly. 

It was noted that the LGPS Governance Conference would be held in Bristol on 17-18 
January 2019, which conflicted with a meeting of the Pensions Committee. It was 
proposed to change the date of the Pensions Committee to 21 January 2019, so that 
Members and Officers could attend the conference. Attention was drawn to this as a 
member of the Pension Board attended the Committee's meetings as an observer.

It was reported that a meeting of the Wales Pension Partnership Joint Committee would 
be held at Council offices, Caernarfon on 25 September. It was reiterated that the 
meeting was public and that members would have the opportunity this time to attend 
locally, or to listen to the webcast as usual.

RESOLVED to accept the information subject to amending the date of the 
Pensions Committee meeting in January 2019.

12. ATTENDANCE IN CONFERENCES

Information was submitted about relevant conferences in order to choose 
representatives to attend them. It was reported that the Council sent representatives on 
a rota basis to a number of conferences during the year, in order to maintain and 
improve skills and knowledge.

RESOLVED to send the following representatives to the conferences:

 CIPFA half day seminars
Osian Richards to attend the meeting in Cardiff (10.10.18) 
Huw Trainor and H. Eifion Jones to attend the meeting in Liverpool 
(12.10.18)

 Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) annual conference, Bournemouth, 
December 2018
H. Eifion Jones to attend 

 LGPS Governance Conference, Bristol, January 2019   
 Tony Deakin and Sharon Warnes to attend 

13. CIPFA LGPS PENSION BOARD ANNUAL CONFERENCE

Page 6



PENSION BOARD 16.07.18

4

Feedback was received from H. Eifion Jones who had attended the conference 
on behalf of the Pension Board.

He noted the following points:

 The good relationship between the Committee, the Board and officers 
that existed in Gwynedd was not as good in several other funds. It 
appeared that there was conflict between the committee and the board 
in some funds, with some pension board members feeling excluded.

 There were pooling arrangements in different forms and with different 
development steps throughout the United Kingdom, and some pension 
board members in England recognised the valuable and appropriate 
progress made by the Wales Partnership.

 A lengthy discussion had been held on whether Boards should be part of 
the system to govern the arrangements. It was reported that no specific 
conclusion had been reached, although the 'observation role' had been 
suggested by some. 

 Random visits by the Pensions Regulator would be in the pipeline this 
year.

 The Chair of the CIPFA pension boards forum had submitted an item on 
insurance, and that a lengthy discussion had been held after the 
presentation, with different opinions being shared.

In response to the observations above, it was noted that the Wales Pension 
Partnership was in a strong position. With respect to the Board's function, it was 
highlighted that establishing a Regional Board had been considered, but that the 
legislation was inflexible. As a result, it was expressed that local Boards had an 
independent role to scrutinise the Partnership's work but that care was needed 
to avoid duplication and meaningless discussions.

In response to an observation about insurance, it was noted that a competitive 
quote had been found for Gwynedd Pension Board members, and it was 
suggested that it would be fair to arrange this pension indemnity, which would 
provide reassurance and a similar indemnity to what was provided for elected 
members of local authorities. Members welcomed the proposal, although some 
expressed concern about the cost. It was agreed to look into incorporating it into 
the general policy on renewing this.

RESOLVED to ask the Head of Finance Department to act on procuring 
insurance indemnity for Gwynedd Pension Board members.

14. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED to exclude the press and public from the meeting during the discussion on 
the following item due to the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 14, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 - Information about the 
financial or business transactions of any specific person (including the authority that 
retains that information).

There is an acknowledged public interest in openness in relation to the use of public 
resources and related financial issues. It is also acknowledged that there are occasions, 
in order to protect the financial interests of public authorities that matters related to 
commercial information need to be discussed without being publicised.  Publication of 
such information in relation to investment intentions and selection of proposed 
investment companies could have a negative impact on commercially sensitive 
activities.  This would be contrary to the wider public interest of securing value for 
money and the best overall outcome.

Page 7



PENSION BOARD 16.07.18

5

For these reasons, the matter was closed for the public interest.

15. ASSET ALLOCATION TO THE WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP GLOBAL 
EQUITY FUNDS

Submitted - a report by the Head of Finance Department to the Pensions 
Committee on 19 June asking for the right to act, in consultation with the 
Committee Chair, on allocating assets to the Wales Pension Partnership’s global 
equity funds. 

It was noted that regular updates had been submitted to the Committee and the 
Pension Board on the progress of the Wales Pension Partnership (WPP) in 
setting up a joint-investment fund, in accordance with the requirements of 
Westminster. It was explained that the aims of the Government were improved 
investment outcomes, reduced risk and reduced costs, whilst enabling each 
constituent authority to implement its own investment strategy.

Following advice from the WPP Executive, and to demonstrate the scale of the 
pooling to the Government, 'actively managed global equity' was chosen as the 
type of assets for the initial funds. 

It was noted that 'Link Asset Services' and 'Russell Investments' had given a 
presentation to Committee members and members of the Gwynedd Board on 15 
March, and informal meetings had been held with members of the Pensions 
Committee on 30 April and 17 May, and an investment consultant from Hymans 
Robertson had also been present on 17 May where expert advice was received 
on the matter.

During the ensuing discussion, the following main observations were noted: 
 The proposal paper outlined the proposal effectively
 Economies of scale enabled dispersion across a number of Managers
 It would be interesting to find out how much was saved in fees and how 

it compared with the set-up costs

In response to a question regarding the ability to compare the returns of both 
portfolios, it was confirmed that there was an intention to submit a report with the 
information when the time was right.

RESOLVED to accept the information.

The meeting commenced at 2pm and concluded at 3:55pm

Page 8



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 08.11.18

1

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 08.11.2018

Present: Councillors: Stephen Churchman, David Cowans (Conwy Borough Council), Simon 
Glyn, Peredur Jenkins, Aled Wyn Jones, John Brynmor Hughes, Peter Read, John Pughe 
Roberts (Chair), Robin Williams (Anglesey Council) and Sharon Warnes (Pensions Board - 
Observing)  

Officers:- Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Nicholas Hopkins (Pensions 
Manager), Delyth Wyn Jones-Thomas (Pensions and Treasury Management Accountant), 
Meirion Jones (Communication Officer - Pensions) and Lowri Haf Evans (Member Support 
Officer). 

1. APOLOGIES

None to note

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

None to note.

3. URGENT ITEMS

None to note.

4. MINUTES

The Chair signed the minutes of the meeting of this committee, held on 19 June 2018, as 
a true record. 

5. INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT

Submitted – a report requesting the Committee to approve the Amended Investment 
Strategy Statement. It was noted that the Pensions Committee had adopted the 
Statement in March 2017 accordance with the new legislation. It was highlighted that the 
statement now included the investment principles that the Committee and the Pensions 
Board had discussed and agreed in previous meetings, as a result of the developmental 
session with Hymans Robertson consultants. It was reiterated that the principles 
highlighted the Fund's aspirations clearly, which in turn would give guidance to the Fund's 
Assets Managers, as well as set the direction for discussions with the Wales Pensions 
Partnership joint practitioner.

In response to a question, it was confirmed that, in accordance with the second principle 
in the paper, the Fund would seek to invest within the Wales area when non-financial 
investments could derive from this, on condition that they satisfy the requirements of the 
fiduciary duty.

RESOLVED to approve the Investment Strategy Statement.

6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT – MID YEAR REVIEW 2018-2019

Submitted, for information, a report highlighting the Council's actual Treasury 
Management activity during the current financial year. It was highlighted that, during the 
six months between 1 April and 30 September 2018, the Council’s borrowing activity had 
remained within the restrictions originally placed and there were no banks where the 
Council had deposited money that had failed to repay.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 08.11.18

2

RESOLVED to accept the information.

7. RECONCILING GUARANTEED MINIMUM PENSIONS (GMP)

Submitted, for information, an update for the Committee regarding the work that had been 
undertaken to reconcile the Guaranteed Minimum Pension. Members were reminded that 
a team of three had been set up in January 2016 under the leadership of the former 
Pensions Manager, Mr Gareth Jones. With the process drawing to an end in December 
2018, the Committee was notified that the Gwynedd position was comparatively good and 
the team was praised for its good work. It was noted that the former Manager's expertise 
had secured a substantial saving for the Council and it had been given to understand that 
other pension funds were employing expensive consultants specialising in the field, or had 
not taken any action and were therefore open to financial risk.

The current situation was envied that the Gwynedd Pension Fund had 119 cases 
designated as stalemate where the Council and Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs 
(HMRC) disagreed with the information submitted.  The Pensions Manager confirmed that 
HMRC had no grounds to challenge the Council's information and that the Council was 
certain that its information was accurate and had evidence to prove it. The officers 
confirmed that the Gwynedd stalemates would be resolved in 2019 - 2020, but that the 
general situation with the Guaranteed Minimum Pension and stalemates was currently the 
subject of a Westminster Government investigation.   

With the formal process drawing to an end on 31 December 2018, it was noted that any 
unresolved work would be transferred to the day-to-day work of the Pensions Department.

RESOLVED to accept the information and it was suggested that a letter be sent on 
behalf of the Committee to thank Mr Gareth Jones for the heroic work of the 
Reconciliation Team.

8. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

It was resolved that there is an acknowledged public interest in openness in relation to 
the use of public resources and related financial issues. It is also acknowledged that 
there are occasions, in order to protect the financial interests of public authorities that 
matters related to commercial information need to be discussed without being publicised.  
The report is specifically regarding receiving a specific offer for a software licence cost 
which is commercially sensitive information. Publishing commercially sensitive 
information of this type could undermine the provider's confidence in submitting prices to 
the Council and, therefore, the Council's ability to procure successfully. This would be 
contrary to the wider public interest of securing value for money and the best overall 
outcome. For these reasons, the matter was considered closed for the public interest.

9. SELF-SERVICE SYSTEM FOR PENSION SCHEME MEMBERS

Submitted – a report requesting the Committee to approve additional funding to implement 
and run the new Members' Self-Service system. The main reasons for the need to update 
the system were highlighted, and a short presentation was given comparing the old and 
new, and it was noted that Gwynedd would choose to host the new software on hardware 
within the Council. It was reiterated that negotiations with the provider were continuing in 
order to lower the price.

During the ensuing discussion, it was agreed that a new system would offer value for 
money and addressed the Council's Language Policy requirements. The officers were 
encouraged to continue to negotiate the price and put pressure to be able to run the 
system on the Council's server.

Page 10



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 08.11.18

3

RESOLVED to approve the funding up to the total noted in the report

The meeting commenced at 2:00pm and concluded at 2:45pm
The meeting commenced at 2:00pm and concluded at 2:45pm

Page 11



MEETING: PENSION BOARD

DATE: 13 DECEMBER 2018

TITLE: PENSION FUND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
2018/19

PURPOSE: To inform the Board of the monitoring and 
performance of pension fund investments

RECOMMENDATION: NOTE THE INFORMATION

AUTHOR: CAROLINE ROBERTS, INVESTMENT MANAGER

1. Introduction

Quarterly performance of the Pension Fund is monitored through the Council’s 
performance process which includes reporting to the Cabinet Member responsible for 
Finance.

The investment performance of individual investment managers is monitored by the 
Pensions Committee which meets as the Investment Panel each quarter. The 
investment managers are invited to each meeting on a rota basis. The active equity 
and active bond managers attend two meetings each year and the other investment 
managers attend once each year. 

Whilst monitoring quarterly and annually take place, it needs to be recognised that the 
pension fund returns over the longer term are the aim and there will inevitably be some 
fluctuations from year to year and more volatility from quarter to quarter. Individual 
investment manager performance is assessed over 3 years.

2. Pension Fund Investment Performance in 2018/19

As the performance for Q3 and Q4 for 2018/19 will not be available until February and 
May, the quarterly cumulative performance indicators and the benchmark for the 
Pension Fund investments in the table include Q4 for 2017/18.

Q2 18/19 Q1 18/19 Q4 17/18
% % %

Performance 3.9 5.2 -3.6
Benchmark 3.2 4.5 -2.9

The Pension Fund performance was above the benchmark in two quarters and 
below the benchmark in quarter 4 in 2017/18 due to equity underperfomance.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



3. Pension Fund Investment Performance over 10 years

Q2 18/19 1 Year 3 Years 
p.a.

5 Years 
p.a

10 Years 
p.a

% % % % %
Performance 3.9 5.2 -3.6 10.7 9.7
Benchmark 3.2 4.5 -2.9 9.9 9.4
Relative 
Performance +0.7 -0.1 +0.2 +0.7 +0.3

The chart below shows the Fund’s quarterly performance and annualised cumulative 
performance (the continuous line) over the last 10 years. 

The chart below shows the 3 year annual rolling comparative performance. 

The chart below shows the annualised three year cumulative performance for each 
manager.

Page 13



Bla
ck

Roc
k

Bla
ck

Roc
k P

ro
pe

rty

Fid
eli

ty

Ins
igh

t

Lo
thb

ur
y

Pa
rtn

er
s

Thr
ea

dn
ee

dle UBS

Ver
ita

s

The
 Fu

nd
0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

Return

Benchmark

Cumulative Performance 2015-2018
R

at
e 

of
 R

et
ur

n

It is generally accepted that investment performance over a longer period of time (say 
3 plus years) is a more valid indicator than over a single year as investment strategies 
designed to bring good performance in the longer run may from time to time suffer 
from short-term setbacks. 

4. Recommendation

The Board is asked to note the information.

Page 14



Meeting: Pension Board
Date: 13/12/2018
Title: Pension Administration
Author: Meirion Jones, Senior Communication Officer
Purpose: For information only

Introduction

This report provides a general overview of pension administration over the last 6 months. It contains 
information on the work that has been accomplished over the period, an update on various projects 
that has previously been mentioned, changes in the regulations and also lists the challenges that the 
department faces from day to day.

GMP Reconciliation

Board members will be aware that a three person team was established in January 2016 to deal with 
the Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) reconciliation exercise.

A GMP reconciliation exercise lists all the members who have a GMP under a scheme and compares
this against a list of all the members who HMRC believes hold a GMP under that same scheme.

Over the last 3 years the team have been busy reconciling the GMP details held for our members.

As of October 2018, there were 134 queries awaiting reply from HMRC. Gwynedd Pension Fund (GPF) 
maintains that 30 of these are ‘not in scheme’ due to refunds having been paid, and therefore there 
should be no GMPs in the Fund. In such cases a Contribution Equivalent Premium would be due to 
HMRC. GPF maintain that these payments have been made and is therefore challenging HMRC about 
the facts.

The temporary member of staff (appointed to the team from June 2016) obtained a permanent post 
as of the end of July 2018. As most of the work had been completed, with queries sent to HMRC, it 
was decided that for the short time remaining on the project, a replacement would not be sought.

Of particular concern are those where GPF and HMRC disagree about their contracted out 
circumstances. These are referred to as ‘stalemate cases’ and vary from cases where benefits have 
been transferred out (including the GMP) to other schemes, but HMRC maintain that GPF retain 
liability, to dependant pensioners where GPF pays a widow/widower GMP but HMRC maintain there is 
no widow/widower entitlement.

GPF currently has 119 widow/widower cases designated as ‘stalemate’. Although entitlement under 
pension regulations has been confirmed by double checking marriage and birth certificates, HMRC still 
insist there is no entitlement.

‘Stalemate’ issues have been raised with the Westminster Government’s Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), who in turn raised it with Treasury. A letter dated 25 
September 2018 from Paul Kirk (Head of Public Service Pensions at Treasury) to Sophie Broadfield 
(Minister of Housing and Local Government) stated that such cases should be resolved between 
schemes and HMRC on an individual scheme basis. This remains an issue requiring further 
investigation.

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



I am pleased to be able to inform members that GPF are in a comparatively good position as regards 
the GMP reconciliation project. The two person team will finish on 31 December 2018 as the team 
leader retires and the seconded Pensions Officer returns to the Pension Section having gained 
valuable experience. We thank all members of the team for their hard work over the last 3 years.

Pension Saving Statements

It is a requirement under HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) regulations to issue a Pension Savings 
Statement to members if the total amount contributed into their pension scheme during a Pension 
Input Period (PIP) is more than the Annual Allowance (AA) for the tax year in which the pension input 
period ends.

The AA is set by HMRC, and represents the maximum amount of pension contributions that you are 
allowed to receive tax relief on, each tax year.

The AA for the tax year ending 5 April 2018 was £40,000 (gross).

For the 2017/18 tax year we issued 23 statements.

Annual Benefit Statements

An Annual Benefit Statement must be produced for each scheme member by the end of August each 
year. This statement gives members details of the benefits accrued up to the end of the previous 
financial year and forecasts the benefits payable at their Normal Pension Age. The statement also 
contains pay details and explanatory notes as to how the benefits are calculated.

As previously stated, from 2018 the Annual Benefit Statement will be placed on the
MSS section of our website, unless the member has opted out of e-communications.

The project was completed on 31/08/2018.

Approximately 1,000 members have written in to confirm they wish to continue to receive a paper 
copy of their statements. Everyone who wrote in up to 31/08/2018 have received a paper copy of 
their statement in the post.

It is anticipated that generating the statements online will save the fund approximately
£15,000 in postage and production per annum.

Training

A full day training session on the Employer Role will be held for employers on the 31st January 2019 
at the Council offices. Mr Karl White, the Training Officer at the Local
Government Association will be conducting the training session. Spaces are limited to 15 places, with 
priority given to the bigger employers.

The aim of the session is to inform the employers of their duties in respect of members being part of 
the LGPS. The session will cover the following topics:

1) Brief Overview of the LGPS 
2) Joining the LGPS 
3) CARE vs Final Pay 
4) Absences 
5) Additional Contributions 
6) Regulatory Requirements 
7) All Types of Retirement 
8) Early Leavers 

Page 16



It is hoped that a further internal session will be held later on in the year if there is a demand.

Scheme Advisory Board (SAB)

Cost Transparency - Investment costs in respect of the Fund’s assets

Cost transparency has become an increasingly important part of good governance and value for 
money assessments. Increased transparency is now included in CIPFA accounting standards and is an 
objective in the government’s criteria for pooling investments. The introduction of MiFID II has also 
seen a greater obligation on managers to fully report costs.

The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board’s Code of Transparency has been 
instrumental in standardising a consensus on cost transparency, with 90 asset managers signed up to 
the code (including BlackRock, Veritas, Fidelity, Insight and USB ). This framework has standardised 
the cost collection process and has enhanced the knowledge and understanding of investment costs, 
ultimately promoting greater accountability and aiding good governance.

SAB were asked at their meeting in June to agree to commence a procurement process for a system 
to be developed to carry out compliance checking. In addition it has been proposed that the Scheme 
Annual Report, which is made up of information from each LGPS Fund's Annual Report and Accounts, 
is enhanced to include additional information on investment costs.

Pension Increase 2019

The Consumer Price Index for September 2018 was 2.4%.  This will be the figure that will be used in 
April to increase pension benefits (subject to approval from the Government) for members who have 
been in receipt of their pension for more than 12 months. 

Measuring Data

In 2015, the Pensions Regulator (tPR) assumed responsibility for Public Sector Pension Schemes. 
Prior to this, in June 2010, tPR issued guidance on the approach that they consider to be good 
practice for measuring the presence of member data.

We commissioned our software provider Aquila Heywood to produce a Data Quality Report for our 
Fund in October 2018.

The report is split into 2 sections:

 Common Data: e.g. name, address, NI number, sex, date of birth, status and date of 
commencement

 Scheme Specific Data: e.g. scheme benefits, transfer details, AVCs, salary details, 
contributions, service, lifetime allowance, annual allowance and GMP.

We give below a summary of the results:

Summary of Common Data Results 

The graph below indicates Gwynedd’s performance for each data category against the agreed scheme 
benchmarks. The results presented herein are generated from data extracted from Gwynedd’s Live 
Altair service on 10th September 2018 for all tests. The overall percentage of tests passed for 
Gwynedd’s common data is 99.3%.

7 of the 8 categories met the highest benchmark of greater than 98% with 1 category not recording a 
single failure. 4 other categories have been rounded to 100% with pass rates over 99.95%. The sole 
category that did not reach the highest benchmark concerned member addresses which fell within 
the green benchmark at 96.7%. Except for member addresses, the general quality of the common 

Page 17



data at Gwynedd is of a high standard. There is some work required with this category to bring it into 
the highest benchmark. The percentage of member records without a single common data failure is 
94.9% and this is the figure that tPR will be requesting on the scheme return.

Summary of Scheme-specific Data Results

The graph below indicates Gwynedd’s performance for each data category against the agreed scheme 
benchmarks. The results presented herein are generated from data extracted from Gwynedd’s Live 
Altair service on 10th September 2018 for all tests. The overall percentage of tests passed for 
Gwynedd’s scheme-specific data is 96.0%. The percentage of member records without a single 
scheme-specific data failure is 81.6% and this is the figure that tPR will be requesting on the 
scheme return.

Page 18



As a comparison, results for the Welsh Funds were:

Common Data Scheme Specific
Cardiff 89% 73.4%
Clwyd 92.7% 68.2%
Dyfed 94.5% 85.3%
Gwynedd 94.9% 81.6%
Powys 93.4% 75.9%
RCT 93.4% 81.2%
Swansea 99.3% 94.9%
Torfaen 96% 81%

An action plan is being developed in relation to implementing any data cleansing that has been 
highlighted as a part of this exercise and this data cleansing is expected to improve the data scores 
for next year.

Pension Managers’ Conference

Nick and Richard attended the Pension Managers’ Conference in Torquay on the 20th and 21st of 
November 2018.

The main points taken from the conference were:

 The importance of receiving clean and accurate data from employers.
 With the ever increasing number of employers participating in the LGPS and the increased 

scrutiny of tPR, it’s key for funds to engage with employers ahead of the 2019 valuation.
 The need to be adequately resourced to provide an excellent service to all stakeholders, have 

a well governed fund and carry out effective risk management. There is more to do than ever 
before with less resources.

 The difficulties in retaining experienced and productive staff.

Page 19



Meeting: Pension Board
Date: 13/12/2018
Title: The Pension Regulator: Public Service Governance 

Survey 2018
Purpose: Receive feedback from the Board in order to complete 

the survey 
Author: Meirion Jones, Senior Communication Officer

 1. INTRODUCTION 

The Pensions Regulator has issued a survey for each local scheme manager to complete for the 
pension fund it administers. Gwynedd Council is the local scheme manager for the Gwynedd Pension 
Fund and is therefore responsible for completing the survey. 

The survey should be completed by the scheme manager working with the Pension Board chair. The 
Chairman of the Gwynedd Pension Board believes that the best way is for the Board to look at the 
survey and consider its response. The closing date for responses is 30th November 2018. However the 
Regulator is happy to extend the deadline for Gwynedd in order for us to receive an input from the 
Board at this meeting.

2. THE SURVEY 

A copy of the survey is attached as Appendix A. The responses to the questions will be considered at 
this meeting and a final version will be agreed with the Chairman before it is sent to The Pensions 
Regulator. However to aid the completion of the survey, factual questions and the opinion of the 
Pensions Manager have been marked in BOLD in Appendix A. These replies are open for discussion 
at the meeting.

Page 20

Agenda Item 8



Appendix A

The Pensions Regulator
Public Service Governance and Administration Survey 2018

This document is intended to be used as a guide to help you gather the information required for the 
survey. Please note, however, that we need you to complete the questionnaire through the online 
survey link contained in your invitation email.

Thank you for taking the time to complete this survey. Please answer the questions in relation to 
the scheme referenced in your invitation email. Where the scheme is locally administered, we mean 
the sub-scheme or fund administered by the local scheme manager. 

Your responses will be kept anonymous unless you consent otherwise at the end of the survey. 
Linking your scheme name to your answers will help inform The Pension Regulator’s (TPR’s) 
engagement with you in the future.

This survey should be completed by the scheme manager or by another party on behalf of the 
scheme manager. They should work with the pension board chair to complete it, and other parties 
(e.g. the administrator) where appropriate.

There is a space at the end of the survey to add comments about your answers where you feel this 
would be useful.

SECTION A – GOVERNANCE

The first set of questions is about how your pension board works in practice.

A1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does your scheme have a documented policy to manage the pension board members’ conflicts of 
interest?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

A2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does your scheme maintain a register of pension board members’ interests?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

A3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Focusing on the scheme’s pension board meetings in the last 12 months, please tell us the 
following:
Please write in the number for each of a-c below

1. Number of board meetings that were scheduled
to take place (in the last 12 months) ...........4........

2. Number of board meetings that actually took
place (in the last 12 months) .........4..........

Page 21



3. Number of board meetings that were attended
by the scheme manager or their representative ..........4.........
(in the last 12 months)

A4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Do the scheme manager and pension board have sufficient time and resources to run the scheme 
properly?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

A5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Do the scheme manager and pension board have access to all the knowledge, understanding and 
skills necessary to properly run the scheme?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

A6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
How often does the scheme manager or pension board carry out an evaluation of the knowledge, 
understanding and skills of the board as a whole in relation to running the scheme? 
Please select one answer only

1. At least monthly
2. At least quarterly
3. At least every six months
4. At least annually
5. Less frequently
6. Never
7. Don’t know

A7. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Focusing on the composition of your pension board, please tell us the following:
Please write in the number for each of a-d below

1. Number of current board members ........6...........

2. Number of vacant positions on the board .........0..........

3. Number of members that have left the board
in the last 12 months .......0............

4. Number of members that have been appointed
to the board in the last 12 months .........0..........

Page 22



SECTION B – MANAGING RISKS

The next set of questions is about managing risks.

B1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Does your scheme have documented procedures for assessing and managing risk?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

B2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Does your scheme have a risk register?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

B3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
In the last 12 months, how often have you reviewed the scheme’s exposure to new and existing 
risks?
Please select one answer only

a) At least every month
b) At least every quarter
c) At least every six months
d) Less than every six months
e) Have not reviewed in the last 12 months
f) Don’t know

B4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
To what do the top three governance and administration risks on your register relate? If you do 
not have a risk register, please tell us to what the top three governance and administration risks 
facing your scheme relate. 
Please select up to three options below

a) Funding or investment
b) Record-keeping (i.e. the receipt and management of correct data)
c) Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) reconciliation
d) Securing compliance with changes in scheme regulations
e) Production of annual benefit statements
f) Receiving contributions from the employer(s)
g) Lack of resources/time
h) Recruitment and retention of staff or knowledge
i) Lack of knowledge, effectiveness or leadership among key personnel
j) Poor communications between key personnel (board, scheme manager, administrator, etc.)
k) Failure of internal controls
l) Systems failures (IT, payroll, administration systems, etc.)
m) Cyber risk (i.e. the risk of loss, disruption or damage to a scheme or its members as a result 

of the failure of its IT systems and processes)
n) Administrator issues (expense, performance, etc.)
o) Other (please specify): ......................................................................................................
p) Don’t know

Page 23



SECTION C – ADMINISTRATION AND RECORD-KEEPING PROCESSES

The next set of questions is about administration and record-keeping.

C1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Which of the following best describes the scheme’s administration services?
Please select one answer only

1. Delivered in house
2. Outsourced to another public body (e.g. a county council)
3. Outsourced to a commercial third party
4. Other
5. Don’t know

C2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
When did the scheme last review who should provide its administration services?
Please select one answer only

1. In the last 12 months
2. Between 13 and 24 months ago
3. Between 25 and 36 months ago
4. More than 36 months ago
5. Never
6. Don’t know

C3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Which of the following do you use to monitor and manage the performance of your administrators 
(whether in-house or outsourced)?
Please select all the options that apply

1. Performance metrics are set out in contracts or service level agreements 
2. Administrators provide independent assurance reports
3. Independent auditors review the performance of administrators
4. Administrators deliver regular reports to the scheme manager and/or pension board on the 

service provided
5. Administrators attend regular meetings with the scheme manager and/or pension board
6. Penalties are applied where contractual terms or service standards are not met
7. None of these
8. Don’t know

C4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
In the last 12 months, how many pension board meetings had administration as a dedicated item 
on the agenda?
Please write in the number below

..............1................

Page 24



C5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Do you have processes in place to monitor scheme records for all membership types on an 
ongoing basis to ensure they are accurate and complete? 
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No 
3. Don’t know

C6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Does the scheme have an agreed process in place with the employer(s) to receive, check and 
review data?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

C7. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Is your scheme single employer or multi-employer?
Please select one answer only

1. Single employer scheme (i.e. used by just one employer)
2. Multi-employer scheme (i.e. used by several different employers)

C8. ANSWER IF SINGLE EMPLOYER SCHEME (C7=1)
Does your participating employer…

Please select one answer per row
Yes No Don’t know

1. Always provide you with timely data? ○ ○ ○

2. Always provide accurate and complete data? ○ ○ ○

3. Submit data to you monthly? ○ ○ ○

4. Submit data to you electronically? ○ ○ ○

C9. ANSWER IF MULTI-EMPLOYER SCHEME (C7=2)
What proportion of your scheme’s employers…
Please write in the percentage (from 0% to 100%) for each of a-d below. If you do not know exactly, 
please give an approximate percentage.

a) Always provide you with timely data? .........75-80.......... %

b) Always provide accurate and complete data? ........75-80........... %

c) Submit data to you monthly? .........26.......... %

d) Submit data to you electronically? ..........100......... %

Page 25



C10. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Does the scheme have a process in place for monitoring the payment of contributions?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

C11. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Does the scheme have a process in place for resolving contribution payment issues?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

C12. ANSWER IF MULTI-EMPLOYER SCHEME (C7=2)
Does the scheme have a defined escalation process in place for dealing with employers who do 
not provide timely or accurate data?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

C13. ANSWER IF MULTI-EMPLOYER SCHEME AND HAVE AN ESCALATION PROCESS (C12=1)
What actions are included in your process for dealing with employers who do not provide timely 
or accurate data?
Please select all the options that apply

1. Chase by telephone
2. Chase in writing
3. Escalate to senior staff
4. Manual correction
5. Impose penalty
6. Remove from scheme
7. Assess for breach of law
8. Other (please specify): .....................................................................................................
9. Don’t know

Page 26



SECTION D – CYBER SECURITY 

The next set of questions is about your scheme’s cyber security.

D1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Which, if any, of the following controls does your scheme have in place to protect your data and 
assets from ‘cyber risk’?
By ‘cyber risk’ we mean the risk of loss, disruption or damage to a scheme or its members as a 
result of the failure of its information technology systems and processes.
Please select all the options that apply

1. Roles and responsibilities in respect of cyber resilience are clearly defined and 
documented

2. Cyber risk is on the risk register and regularly reviewed
3. Assessment of the vulnerability to a cyber incident of the key functions, systems, assets and 

parties involved in the running of the scheme
4. Assessment of the likelihood of different types of breaches occurring in the scheme 
5. Access to specialist skills and expertise to understand and manage the risk
6. System controls (e.g. firewalls, anti-virus and anti-malware products and regular updates 

of software)
7. Controls restricting access to systems and data 
8. Critical systems and data are regularly backed up
9. Policies on the acceptable use of devices, passwords and other authentication, and on 

home and mobile working
10. Policies on data access, protection, use and transmission which are in line with data 

protection legislation and guidance
11. An incident response plan to deal with any incidents which occur
12. The scheme manager has assured themselves of third party providers’ controls (including 

administrators)
13. The scheme manager receives regular updates on cyber risks, incidents and controls
14. The pension board receives regular updates on cyber risks, incidents and controls
15. None of these
16. Don’t know

D2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Have any of the following happened to your scheme, including at any outsourced administration 
provider, in the last 12 months?
Please select all the options that apply

1. Computers becoming infected with ransomware
2. Computers becoming infected with other viruses, spyware or malware
3. Attacks that try to take down your website or online services
4. Hacking or attempted hacking of online bank accounts
5. People impersonating your scheme in emails or online
6. Staff receiving fraudulent emails or being directed to fraudulent websites
7. Unauthorised use of computers, networks or servers by staff, even if accidental
8. Unauthorised use or hacking of computers, networks or servers by people outside your 

scheme 
9. Any other types of cyber security breaches or attacks
10. None of these
11. Don’t know

Page 27



D3. ANSWER IF EXPERIENCED ANY CYBER SECURITY BREACHES IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (D2=1-9)
Thinking of all the cyber security breaches or attacks experienced by your scheme in the last 12 
months (including at any outsourced administration provider), which, if any, of the following 
happened as a result?
Please select all the options that apply

1. Software or systems were corrupted or damaged
2. Personal data (e.g. on members, beneficiaries or staff) was altered, destroyed or taken
3. Permanent loss of files (other than personal data)
4. Temporary loss of access to files or networks
5. Lost or stolen assets, trade secrets or intellectual property
6. Money was stolen
7. Your website or online services were taken down or made slower
8. Lost access to any third-party services you rely on
9. None of these
10. Don’t know

SECTION E – DATA REVIEW

The next set of questions is about your scheme’s approach to reviewing and improving its data.

E1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
When did your scheme last complete a data review exercise?
Please select one answer only

1. Within the last 12 months
2. More than 12 months ago
3. Never completed one
4. Don’t know

E2. ANSWER IF LAST COMPLETED A DATA REVIEW EXERCISE MORE THAN 12 MONTHS AGO OR 
NEVER COMPLETED ONE (E1=2 OR 3)
Is a data review exercise currently underway for your scheme but not yet completed?
Please select one answer only
Yes
No
Don’t know

E3. ANSWER IF SCHEME HAS EVER COMPLETED A DATA REVIEW EXERCISE (E1=1 OR 2)
Did your scheme’s most recently completed data review exercise look at any of the following?
Please select all the options that apply

1. Common data (e.g. member’s name, DOB, NI number and address) 
2. Scheme-specific data (previously called conditional data)
3. Member existence checks
4. None of these
5. Don’t know

Page 28



E4. ANSWER IF DATA REVIEW COVERED COMMON DATA (E3=1)
Did your scheme’s most recently completed data review exercise identify any issues or problems 
with the common data?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes 
2. No
3. Don’t know

E5. ANSWER IF DATA REVIEW IDENTIFIED ANY ISSUES WITH COMMON DATA (E4=1)
Has any action been taken to address the issues identified with the common data? 
Please choose one answer that most closely describes the action your scheme has taken to date

1. An improvement plan is in development
2. An improvement plan is in place but rectification work is not yet complete
3. An improvement plan has been put in place and rectification work has been completed
4. Rectification work has been undertaken without an improvement plan
5. No improvement plan has been developed and no work has been undertaken 
6. Don’t know

E6. ANSWER IF DATA REVIEW COVERED SCHEME-SPECIFIC DATA (E3=2)
Did your scheme’s most recently completed data review exercise identify any issues or problems 
with the scheme-specific data?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes 
2. No
3. Don’t know

E7. ANSWER IF DATA REVIEW IDENTIFIED ANY ISSUES WITH SCHEME-SPECIFIC DATA (E6=1)
Has any action been taken to address the issues identified with the scheme-specific data? 
Please choose one answer that most closely describes the action your scheme has taken to date

1. An improvement plan is in development
2. An improvement plan is in place but rectification work is not yet complete
3. An improvement plan has been put in place and rectification work has been completed
4. Rectification work has been undertaken without an improvement plan
5. No improvement plan has been developed and no work has been undertaken 
6. Don’t know

SECTION F – ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS

The next set of questions is about members’ annual benefit statements.

F1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
In 2018, what proportion of active members received their annual benefit statements by the 
statutory deadline?
Please write in the percentage below. If you do not know exactly, please give an approximate 
percentage.

..............85-90................ %

Page 29



F2. ANSWER IF DEADLINE WAS MISSED FOR ANY MEMBERS (F1=0-99%)
Was the missed deadline for issuing active member statements reported to TPR?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes - and Breach of Law report made
2. Yes - but decided not to make a Breach of Law report
3. No - not reported
4. Don’t know

F3. ANSWER IF MISSED DEADLINE WAS NOT REPORTED TO TPR (F2=3)
What was the main reason for not reporting the breach?
Please select one answer only

1. Not material - few statements affected
2. Not material - very short delay
3. Other reason (please specify): .....work ongoing on correct records...........................
4. Don’t know

F4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
What proportion of all the annual benefit statements the scheme sent out in 2018 contained all 
the data required by regulations?
Please write in the percentage below. If you do not know exactly, please give an approximate 
percentage.

................100.............. %

SECTION G – RESOLVING ISSUES

The next set of questions is about resolving issues or complaints the scheme has received.

G1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Does the scheme have a working definition of what constitutes a complaint? 
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

G2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
In the last 12 months, how many complaints have you received from members or beneficiaries in 
relation to their benefits and/or the running of the scheme? And how many of these complaints 
have entered the Internal Dispute Resolution (IDR) process?
Please write in the number for each of a) and b) below. The number at b) should be equal to or lower 
than the number at a).

1. Total number of complaints received ...........1........

2. Number of these complaints that have entered
the Internal Dispute Resolution (IDR) process ...........1........

Page 30



G3. ANSWER IF ANY COMPLAINTS RECEIVED IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (G2a>0)
To what did the top three types of complaint relate? 
Please select up to three options below

1. Eligibility for ill health benefit
2. Slow or ineffective communication
3. Inaccuracies or disputes around pension value or definitions
4. Delays to benefit payments
5. Disputes or queries about the amount of benefit paid
6. Delay or refusal of pension transfer
7. Inaccurate data held and/or statement issued
8. Pension overpayment and recovery
9. Other (please specify): .......................................................................................................
10. Don’t know

G4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Does the scheme carry out a satisfaction survey(s) among its members and beneficiaries? 
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

SECTION H – REPORTING BREACHES

The next set of questions is about the scheme’s approach to dealing with any breaches of the law.

H1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Does the scheme have procedures in place to allow the scheme manager, pension board members 
and others to identify breaches of the law? 
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

H2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
In the last 12 months, have you identified any breaches of the law that are not related to annual 
benefit statements? 
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

Page 31



H3. ANSWER IF ANY BREACHES OF THE LAW NOT RELATED TO ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS HAVE 
BEEN IDENTIFIED IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (H2=1) 
What were the root causes of the breaches identified? 
Please select all the options that apply

1. Systems or process failure
2. Failure to maintain records or rectify errors
3. Management of transactions (e.g. errors or delays in payments of benefits)
4. Failure of the employer(s) to provide timely, accurate or complete data
5. Late or non-payment of contributions by the employer(s)
6. Other employer-related issues (please specify): ...............................................................
7. Conflicts of interest
8. Lack of knowledge and understanding
9. Something else (please specify): .......................................................................................
10. Don’t know

H4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Are there procedures in place to assess breaches of the law, and report these to TPR if required? 
Please select one answer only

1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

H5. ANSWER IF ANY BREACHES OF THE LAW NOT RELATED TO ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS HAVE 
BEEN IDENTIFIED IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (H2=1)
In the last 12 months, have you reported any breaches to TPR as you thought they were materially 
significant? Please do not include any breaches that related to annual benefit statements.
Please select one answer only

a) Yes
b) No
c) Don’t know

SECTION I – GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

The next set of questions is about your progress in addressing governance and administration 
issues.

I1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
To what would you attribute any improvements made to the scheme’s governance and 
administration in the last 12 months? 
Please select all the options that apply

1. Improved understanding of underlying legislation and standards expected by TPR
2. Improved engagement by TPR
3. Improved understanding of the risks facing the scheme
4. Resources increased or redeployed to address risks
5. Administrator action (please specify): ...Looking at staff restructure....................................
6. Scheme manager action (please specify): ...........................................................................
7. Pension board action (please specify): ...............................................................................
8. Other (please specify): ........................................................................................................
9. No improvements to governance/administration in the last 12 months
10. Don’t know

Page 32



I2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
What are the main three barriers to improving the governance and administration of your scheme 
over the next 12 months? 
Please select up to three options below

1. Lack of resources or time
2. Complexity of the scheme
3. The volume of changes that are required to comply with legislation
4. Recruitment, training and retention of staff and knowledge
5. Lack of knowledge, effectiveness or leadership among key personnel
6. Poor communications between key personnel (board, scheme manager, administrator, etc.)
7. Employer compliance
8. Issues with systems (IT, payroll, administration systems, etc.)
9. Other (please specify): .......................................................................................................
10. There are no barriers
11. Don’t know

SECTION J – PERCEPTIONS OF TPR

The final set of questions is about your views of TPR.

J1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Thinking about your overall perception of TPR, to what extent do you agree or disagree with the 
following words as ways to describe TPR?
Please select one answer per row

Strongly 
agree Agree

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree Disagree

Strongly 
disagree

Don’t 
know

1. Tough ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

2. Efficient ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

3. Visible ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

4. Fair ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

5. Respected ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

6. Evidence-based ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

7. Decisive ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

8. Clear ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

9. Approachable ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

J2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Thinking now about how TPR operates, how effective do you think it is at improving standards in 
scheme governance and administration in public service pension schemes?
Please select one answer only

1. Very effective
2. Fairly effective
3. Neither effective nor ineffective
4. Not very effective
5. Not at all effective
6. Don’t know

Page 33



SECTION K – ATTRIBUTION

Thank you for completing this survey. Your responses will help TPR understand how schemes are 
progressing and any issues they may face, which will inform further policy and product 
developments. Before you submit your answers, there are just a few more questions about your 
survey responses.

K1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Which of the following best describes your role within the pension scheme?
Please select one answer only

1. Scheme manager*
2. Representative of the scheme manager
3. Pension board chair
4. Pension board member
5. Administrator
6. Other (please specify): ......................................................................................................

*In this survey ‘scheme manager’ refers to the definition within the Public Service Pensions Act, e.g. 
the Local Authority, Fire and Rescue Authority, Police Pensions Authority, Secretary of State/Minister 
or Ministerial department. 

K2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
What other parties did you consult with to complete this survey?
Please select all the options that apply

1. Scheme manager
2. Representative of the scheme manager
3. Pension board chair
4. Pension board member
5. Administrator
6. Other
7. Did not consult with any other parties

K3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
To inform TPR’s engagement going forward, they would like to build an individual profile of your 
scheme by linking your scheme name to your survey answers. This will only be used for internal 
purposes by TPR and your scheme name would not be revealed in any published report.
Are you happy for your responses to be linked to your scheme name and supplied to TPR for this 
purpose?
Please select one answer only

1. Yes, I am happy for my responses to be linked to my scheme name and supplied to TPR
2. No, I would like my responses to remain anonymous

K4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
And would you be happy for the responses you have given to be linked to your scheme name and 
shared with the relevant scheme advisory board? This is to help inform the advisory boards of 
areas for improvement and to further their engagement with pension boards.
Please select one answer only

1. Yes, I am happy for my responses to be linked to my scheme name and shared with the 
relevant advisory board

2. No, I would like my responses to remain anonymous

Page 34



K5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
TPR may conduct some follow up research on this topic to improve their advice and engagement 
with schemes such as yours. Would you be willing for us to pass on your name, contact details and 
relevant survey responses to them so that they, or a different research agency on their behalf, 
could invite you to take part? 
You may not be contacted and, if you are, there is no obligation to take part. Your contact details 
will be stored for a maximum duration of 12 months, before being securely destroyed.
Please select one answer only

a) Yes, I am happy to be contacted for follow-up research
b) No, I would prefer not to be contacted for follow-up research

K6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Please record your name below. This is just for quality control purposes and will not be passed on 
to TPR (unless you have agreed that they can contact you for follow-up research).
Please write in below

.....Mr Nicholas Hopkins (Pensions Manager) in conjunction with Mr Anthony Deakin (Pension 
Board Chair) and members of the Board....................................................

K7. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Finally, please use the space below if you have any other comments or would like to clarify/ 
explain any of the answers you have given.
Please write in below if applicable

...................................................................................................................................................

...................................................................................................................................................

...................................................................................................................................................

...................................................................................................................................................

...................................................................................................................................................

...................................................................................................................................................

...................................................................................................................................................

Page 35



Meeting: Pension Board

Date: 13/12/2018

Title: Member Self Service 

Purpose: Demonstration of the system to Board members 

Author: Meirion Jones, Senior Communication Officer

Member Self Service – Pension Online

The Member Self-Service (MSS) system has been part of the services offered to pension scheme 
members for several years. It is a secure portal on our website, which enables members to:

 View and update their personal details and change address
 Find how much pension benefits they will receive when retiring 
 Calculate the extra lump sum they can take when retiring
 See their service history, including any service that has been transferred in
 See details of nominated beneficiaries
 View their Annual Benefit Statement

MSS is a very important resource for the Pensions Administration Section as it allows members to 
update basic details, such as addresses and death grant nomination, and perform retirement benefits 
calculations themselves. This releases the time of the Section’s officers to work on more challenging 
cases.

In August 2018, the MSS website was viewed 5,200 times and was visited by 3,500 individual 
members. 

The current MSS system has existed for over 10 years and is now based on old fashioned technology. 
Aquila Heywood who provides the system have stopped developing the old version of MSS, which 
means that the version we use will no longer be updated and will be taken offline in 2021.  Updating 
the text on the MSS website is also time consuming for our Pension Section’s staff, since text that 
needs to be updated has to be located in the middle of a computer script, and this can take some 
time. It is necessary for the website to be bilingual, and at present, it is not possible to change 
everything to the Welsh language. Another problem with the current system is that it’s not compatible 
with our new server. 

In recent years, Aquila Heywood has developed a new version of MSS with a brand new interface. 
Although, in essence, there are few new features in the new version, it is a more attractive and easier 
to navigate system and therefore, hopefully, gives pension scheme members a better experience. The 
new system is also compatible with our new server.

In the Pension Committee on 8th November 2018 funding was approved to upgrade to the new 
version of MSS. 

Discussions are currently ongoing with Aquila Heywood and Gwynedd Council in respect of installing 
the new MSS system. It is hoped that the system will be up and running in early 2019.

Page 36

Agenda Item 9


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 PENSIONS COMMITTEE MINUTES
	6 PENSION FUND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 2018/19
	7 PENSION ADMINISTRATION
	8 THE PENSIONS REGULATOR SURVEY
	9 SELF SERVICE FOR MEMBERS SYSTEM DEMONSTRATION

